Editorial: 
AND HUMAN SHIELD IS USED AS THE MATTER OF POLICY

Using two students of Palhalan, Pattan as human shield by the Rashtriya Rifles (RR) to flush out the holed up militants, which resulted in their death, is not an isolated case. In the same town earlier also on March 2003, two civilians including a teacher have died after being used as human shield by the same RR at village Kawoosa Chak, Kreeri while fighting the hold up militants. On July 27, 2004, three boys in the similar fashion were used as human shield but they were lucky to survive. Using human Shield is a statewide phenomenon, which the army is using as modus operandi since 1989 to neutralize militancy. There are innumerable cases like in Chattibandi, Bandipora where in February 2004, 5 civilians got killed after being used as human shield, which got much attention because the dialogue process between the Hurriyat Conference and Indian government was at infancy. Even Hurriyat Conference had threatened to pull out of the dialogue with govt. of India if the army didn’t stop the practice. Few victims have filed the cases against the RR seeking compensation for the deaths of their relatives who were used as human shield. Like three students in Nasalapura Budgam who were forced to accompany 35 RR forced in which one Ghulam Mohammad Lone died while the other two were injured critically in crossfire. Besides using students as human shield, the Indian army have not spared even the children and women. The civilian buses on highways are often hijacked, the commuters used as human shield. The army camps have been deliberately installed in functioning schools or in hospitals. Camps have been installed in densely populated villages using inhabitants there as human shield and even during de-mining or defusing the IEDs planted by the militants on highways and roads people have been coerced like the incident of Zazja, Ganderbal where on 20th of May 2001, three employees of the state irrigation department were compelled at gunpoint to open a cloth bag having IED in it, which blew up killing two employers instantly. These are some of the incidents, which have surfaced and were reported by human rights organizations and the media but in inaccessible areas such instances have gone unreported and becomes non-events. The army claimed to be a disciplined force by the Indian govt. has been using human shield as a matter of policy. Conscious of the fact they are operating in a territory where people perceive them as occupying force. They truly believe that the people they are dealing with are the subjects not citizens. To the advantage of the army these incidents in a civilized society could result in the change of the governments are ordering probes and commissions in order to find the culpability, seldom become the issue before the govt. or before the Indian media who are providing political and moral impunity to the armed forces deployed in J&K and time to time have justifying their omissions and commissions. Only in some cases it becomes a law and order problem promptly customary probes and magisterial enquiries are ordered which fails to provide a credible report for punishing the perpetrators. For last three years since the PDP-Congress coalition regime took over reigns 83 customary magisterial enquires were ordered after public pressure but none of the culpable were taken to justice and the findings were partial. The fate of most of the probes was not known even after years. The army is convinced that they will get away with anything they do, as there is no institutional accountability to them and exposures of their excesses can be taken care of by the government. 

The 10 commandments issued by the army headquarters called as Do’s and Don’t there is no mention of human shield even if it were, it won’t made any difference. Using non-combatants as cannon fodders even in wars is a grave violation of the internationally recognized Humanitarian Law. Even Geneva Convention is very clear it tantamount to murder and people are personally responsible for such acts. It is a most cowardly act and it justifies the saying all wars are terrorist wars. It belies the Indian government’s claims that the army in J&K is for the protection of the civilians. There are Independent International Non-Governmental Monitory Bodies to monitor the conduct of the states and its functionaries. Unfortunately, there are no such organization like Transparency International, Minority Rights group which could monitor the conducts and functioning of the armies in their respective countries or in conflict areas all over the world and if it were the Indian army, would be somewhere at the top of the list for being unethical and unprofessional. These incidents are likely to continue until and unless the authorities controlling the army shall not take a serious note of it which is very unlikely on one hand and on the other the international watch groups sensitive to women and children rights take up the issue per se. 

STUDENTS USED AS TOOL TO COUNTER MILITANCY: VILLAGERS

TWO STUDENTS USED AS HUMAN SHIELD DIED

ARMY DENIED ALLEGATIONS 
November 12: Two students Shabir Ahmad Shah, 21, son of Mohammad Akbar Shah and Aijaz Ahmad Dar, 18, son of Ghulam Mohammad Dar both residents of Palhalan, Pattan, Baramulla fell to bullets when they were used as human shield allegedly by the troops during a counter-insurgency operation at Pattan, in North Kashmir’s Baramulla district. 

On November 12 troops of 29 Rashtriya Rifles (RR) on a tip off militants presence in the house of one Mohammad Sultan Ganie conducted a counter-militancy operation in Palhalan, Pattan. The troops ordered people to assemble at Palhalan High School during operation. As people gathered, they took along two boys Shabir and Aijaz to the encounter site and used as human shields. In a gun battle between militants and troops, both the boys got injured but troops didn’t allow people to move them to the hospital till they breathed their last.

However refuting the allegations, PRO defense, Colonel Batra said, “On a specific information, 29 RR launched an operation at night and carried out cordon of suspected area. On November 12, morning army Major conducted the operation along with jawans who entered the same house twice, in which the militants were hiding, but did not find anybody. In the third attempt to search (due to specific information), the troops drew the fire from the militants in which one jawan died and army Major suffered superficial wounds. One jawan was still inside the house when the encounter started. Hence the allegation of using the civilians as human shield is absolutely baseless and motivated. After the operation, two bodies of terrorists were recovered and one civilian sustained injury in the crossfire was in fact evacuated by soldiers of 29 RR to Pattan hospital where from he was rushed to SKIMS. But unfortunately he succumbed to injuries. One of the two militants killed was Batallion Commander of Hizbul Mujahideen. Weapons and other war like stores were recovered from their possession.”

On November 13, hundreds of people came out on streets to protest against the killing. The protesters including a large number of women and children blocked the busy Srinagar- Baramulla highway shouting anti government and anti force slogans.

Furious, police swung into action and resorted to heavy baton change while lobbing dozens of teargas shells to disperse the agitators who however refused to leave. Traffic on the highway remained disrupted for many hours as people refused to give way to vehicles. Adamant, the protesters blocked the highway shouting slogans against troops and demanded punishment to the accused. Ironically the killing comes barely a week after new Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad promised that custodial killings wouldn’t be tolerated anymore.

On November 14, a reporter of JKCCS met the families of the killed students. Divulging the details of the incident, to The Informative Missive Mohammad Akbar, father of Shabir Ahmad said, “On 12th November about 6 am, 29-RR camped at Usun and Hyderbeg Pattan cordoned the village and ordered people to gather at Palhalan High School, while army took along Shabir Ahmed and Aijaz Ahmed to search the village”.

 “The army, said Ab. Rahim Sheikh neighbor of the deceased, on information of militant presence in the house of Mohd Sultan Ganie raided his house thrice. On 3rd attempt, an army officer along with Shabir and Aijaz went to the first floor of the house while other army personnel remained on ground floor and kept Mohd Sultan with them. Meanwhile, some gunshots were heard in the first floor. Sensing militant attack, the army in the ground floor fired indiscriminately. As firing started, both boys beseeched for their evacuation, which army denied. During exchange of fire, a bullet hit Shabir’s leg while Aijaz received bullet in his abdomen. Injured, both boys pleaded for safety”.

“Lying in a pool of blood, Aijaz showed some courage and caught hold of injured army officer’s leg pleading for his life, whereas Shabir lay unconscious. While army took their wounded officer and Aijaz to Srinagar for immediate treatment, Shabir was left at the encounter site. We were not allowed to move him to the hospital till he breathed his last”, said Mohd Akbar father of Shabir Ahmad Shah.

“En route Srinagar at Mirgund I sighted army vehicle carrying the injured officer and Aijaz. I made abortive attempts to see my brother but army restricted me. The army directly went to Badami Bagh Headquarters 15 Corpse hospital, Srinagar for immediate medical treatment to their officer. On reaching the Badami Bagh army moved their officer into the hospital while my brother was left in the vehicle at Badami Bagh gate”, said shocked Riyaz Ahmad, Aijaz’s brother. 

He further added “police personnel accompanied me to Srinagar. As they left Aijaz at the gate, we requested army to hand him over to us so that we could get him treated, but army refused and started abusing. Army kept Aijaz at the gate till he breathed his last. This scene has left strong imprints on my mind, my brother died in front of me and I was watched him die helplessly”.

After Shabir Ahmad Shah succumbed to his injuries at the encounter site, army took his dead body to Usun camp, Pattan. Parents of the deceased duo lodged FIR vide no. 200/05 in concerned police station. On 13th November at 10 am the army handed over Shabir’s body to his family. 

On receiving the dead body the entire village seethed, villagers thronged to streets and raised slogans against the troops. They blocked the national highway and demanded stern action against culprit officials. In the meantime many police high ups and government authorities visited the village and assured them of justice. It was on their assurance that the dead bodies were buried in their ancestral graveyard Palhalan.

“I lost my son, my hope, for none of his fault. He was about to appear in his 12th class examination after two days of his death. Shabir was well known in the entire area for his cricket skills.  He had played many national tournaments”, said Tota Shabir’s mother. 

Aijaz’s mother Haleema mourning over the death of his son while talking to The Informative Missive said, “My son, oh my son where from I get you back. While studying he took great responsibility of supporting the family in his tender age. He was dealing with carpets to earn money so that he could carry his study. He never made us realize that his studies were a burden to his poor family”. 

Both the families allege that army was coercing them to concoct a story that the duo were killed in a cross fire or fabricate anything by which army could get bailed out. Apprehensive and sacred both Tota and Haleema allege, “Our males are often called by the Army to their camp. They are threatened either to enter into a compromise or face dire consequences. The army has made our life miserable by subjecting us to more persecutions. We are very much worried about welfare of our other children, as we fear that army is capable of causing further damage to our families”.

However, the army denied the allegations. According to the army spokesman Colonel Batra, these allegations are baseless and concocted.

STUDENT TORTURED 

A 12th class student who got abducted by unidentified persons on 26th November on way to home from school in Anantnag district of South Kashmir was released three days later in a moribund condition. Tortured brutally with electric shocks and heavy rollers, Sarjeel Ahmad Rather (20) son of Abul Hameed Rather, resident of Sangas Kulgam Anantnag still reels under shock.


“On November 26, Sarjeel after receiving his Roll No. Slip from Boys Higher Secondary Khanabal Anantnag left the school and waited at Khanabal bus stand. However finding all buses overloaded, he decided to move to main Bus Yard Islamabad. While waiting there, some white Gypsies stopped in front of him from which uniformed personnel came out and blind folded Sarjeel after bundling him into one of the Gypsies. He was taken to some unknown place where he was tortured mercilessly,” revealed Sarjeel’s mother Shameema while talking to The Informative Missive 


On the abduction of Sarjeel, Shameema added, “we lodged an FIR in Kulgam police station Anantnag which we cancelled day after his release three days later on 29th November Lane Anantnag at about 8:30 pm in the evening. His body bore blood clots and bruises. His shrieks for help   caught the attention of an auto rickshaw driver who dropped him at his sister’s house situated quite nearby. As our residence is 20km from Islamabad and being quite late it was not possible for the driver to drop him home”. 

On finding him in a half dead condition, his sister and her in-laws rushed Sarjeel to a nearby Hospital for the immediate treatment. “Unconscious, Sarjeel all during his medical treatment kept screaming and reiterating, “Leave me please, Leave me please, I am innocent”. The torture inflicted on him had left strong imprints on his memory,” divulged Sarjeel’s sister Bilquise to The Informative Missive.

As per the medical report Sarjeel had been given electric shocks in his head and some heavy tool had rolled on his back.


Recollecting the incident, Bilquise bemoans and adds that in his period of recuperation, Sarjeel would often wake up mid-night screaming for help.  

Narrating his tale of detention to The Informative Missive, Sarjeel disclosed that some unidentified gypsy borne men abducted him and took him to some unknown place where he was thrashed and tortured ruthlessly. On asking them about his abduction, the abductors accused him of trying to plant some IED in the Bus Stand. Although he pleaded a lot for his innocence they thrashed him till he got unconscious.

“The memories of the incident are so painfully chilling that I fear to even think about it,” says pale-faced Sarjeel.


Expressing her woes, Shameema believes Sarjeels eyes were puffed up for constant blind-fold by the unidentified persons. “ Since his torture, he is in constant stress and has become physically weak. Further for his mental depression he could not appear in his annual examination of 12th class. He lost one precious year of his career for this inhuman act,” Shameema gushed.


Ever since Sarjeel was released, the family used to get some anonymous phone calls. The abductors, who got Sarjeel’s number from his Identity card, snatched during torture without identifying themselves accused Sarjeel of being associated with militancy. Perturbed over incessant calls Sarjeel’s family went to telephone exchange to ascertain the sources of calls. However, no details were provided to the family. Fearful, the family went to Kulgam Police station and filed a complaint against anonymous calls.  “After complaining we did not receive further calls”, said mother Shameema while talking to The Informative Missive. 


The torture inflicted on Sarjeel is directly proportional to his mental agony. “There is no fair play and Human Rights protection anywhere in our state and all this is due to anarchy”, added sister Bilquise.

JUDICIARY IS MEANT TO PENALIZE THE CULPRITS, NOT TO SHIELD THEM 

FOLLOW UP
No respite comes even after 28 months to the family of Sheikh Ghulam Nabi; a renowned Kashmiri singer killed mysteriously allegedly by the Punjab police while on his way to Delhi via Shalimar Express train  in July 2003. 

In a follow up The Informative Missive met Ghulam Nabi’s family. “After the murder of my brother besides the then Chief Minister Mufti Mohammad Syed, the authority higher ups not only condoled but assured us of stern and rapid action against the people involved. Now 28 months has elapsed without any results,” said Abdul Rashid Ghulam Nabi’s brother.  

Initially, some officials and colleagues of Ghulam Nabi from Radio Kashmir Srinagar, Rashid added, had shown great concern but with the passage of time they too turned cold. 

“Meanwhile, Rafiq Masoodi director Radio Kashmir has been transferred to Delhi. Earlier we thought that he had been transferred to pursue his colleague’s case but we were wrong,” said Abdul Rashid 


 “We tried all means to seek justice. We lodged an FIR in concerned police station where the incident took place and also filed a petition in the Chandigarh, High Court but to no avail” he grumbles. 


Abdul Rashid suspects Railway Punjab Police officials with whom Ghulam Nabi had a scuffle over cigarette smoking in the train at the very station the incident took place. 

Half an hour after the incident, railway police officials specifically asked my niece about her father. It is enough to indicate their involvement,” reiterates Abdul Rashid.

           
“Former Chief Minister knows the family of Sheikh Ghulam Nabi quite well. He had assured the family of justice and a high level probe into the incident. However with the change of the Government we have lost all hope”, said Tariq Ahmad brother- in-law of deceased.


 Tariq Ahmad further added, “Punjab authorities encouraged by the non-seriousness of the J&K authorities play foul. The case has almost being hushed up. Now my nephew and niece temporarily residing in Delhi are fighting the case in Punjab”.


 In a telephonic conversation with The Informative Missive Ghulam Nabi’s daughter Huma presently residing in Delhi expressed, “We are totally helpless as all our expectations have been dashed. We expected help from J&K government but it has turned insensitive towards our ordeal”.

On legal system, she said, “The whole system (Police and judiciary) in Punjab is partial. Our father’s case is gathering dust in Chandigarh High Court. The court had directed the CBI to investigate into the case but to our surprise the CBI declared in its reports the death as accidental. The Punjab authorities are lying regarding the post mortem report, which states that post mortem was conducted at 12:30 pm whereas according to witnesses the dead body was lying on the spot up to 1:00 pm nullifying the police claims. Punjab High court ordered the suspension of the persons involved in cremating the body”.

“Mere suspension is not justice anyway. We are demanding absolute justice i.e. punishment to the real culprits. The Police in connivance with court authorities of Punjab are hell bent to hush up the matter. My whole family and I are extremely disappointed by the judicial system. Judiciary is meant to penalize the culprits, not to shield them. To continue our fight for justice we have again filed a petition in the Punjab High court to punish the real culprits”, said exhausted Huma

YET ANOTHER KASHMIRI STUDENT IMPLICATED 

NARCO-ANALYSIS TEST BELIED DELHI POLICE”S CLAIM
For someone never been across the Kashmir valley, being seen in Delhi on 29 October 2005 when bombs rocked the city and that too at the blast site may not appeal any sensible mind. But for Delhi police and SOG, nothing seems impossible. Twenty-nine-year old Mohammad Rafiq Shah son of Mohammad Yaseen Shah R/o Shuhama Aalesteng, Srinagar has been accused of triggering the 29th Blast at Sarojni Nagar, Delhi in which 67 people were killed. 


A student of Kashmir University, Mohammad Rafiq bears enough to prove his innocence. Perusing Masters in Islamic Studies, on the intervening night of 21-22 November 2005 a joint posse of Special Cell of Delhi police and Special Operation Group (SOG) of J&K raided the house of Mohammad Rafiq Shah and took him away.


To ascertain the facts The Informative Missive talked to the Rafiq’s father, Yaseen Shah who apprehensive over the fate of his son moves from pillar to post to seek his son’s release as early as possible. “His arrest and that too in Delhi blasts is spine chilling. He has never been to any part of India in his whole life. He has been very studious and was about to appear in his final semester examination”.

“On 22nd November, adds Yaseen, around 2:45 am there was a terrifying knock at our door. I swiftly opened the door and spotted SOG personnel along with some other personnel whom I couldn’t identify. The personnel said they had come to arrest my son in case of 29th October blast. Before listing a word they caught hold of Rafiq who was wearing only trousers and shirt. They dragged him out in the chilling winter and bundled him into in a Gypsy in which they had come. There were also some Santro vehicles   with one vehicle bearing registration No. HR/3914. Although we pleaded his innocence, it fell on deaf ears”.

 “We are shell shocked by the accusation leveled against him. The SOG and Delhi police allege that Mohammad Rafiq is one of the main accused in the Sarojni Nagar blast and claim that his appearance matches with the sketch of the accused drawn after the blast” he clued-up. 

The same day, Rafiq’s parents approached police station Zakura and filed a complaint, the copy of which police refused to provide.  

On November 25th at 1:00 pm the same raiding party re-raided Rafiq’s house. The ransacked the house and took personal phone diary and two CD’s containing study material of Rafiq with them. “We asked them the purpose for taking Rafiq’s things but they refused to say anything,” laments Yasin.

In the meantime, the family approached SSP Srinagar and submitted an application a propos to the arrest of Rafiq. The family also approached State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) and filed a petition there but nothing came out. 

Recalling past, Yaseen said, “Rafiq was first arrested in 2001 by Border Security Forces (BSF) troops while on his way to Sri Pratap College and incarcerated for 2 ½ years under Public Safety Act (PSA). He completed his graduation from the Central jail Srinagar. After his release in 2003, he got enrolled in Kashmir University in the Department of Islamic Studies. However of and on Counter Intelligence Kashmir (CIK), STF and other counter insurgency agencies questioned him inquiring of his engagements. His movements were under check and therefore, he was under constant intelligence scanner”. 

Asserting his innocence Yaseen says, “Rafiq was a regular student of Kashmir University and was very much present in the university premises on the day blasts occurred in Delhi. He attended all of his classes on 29th October as per his department attendance register. So how come he be in Delhi on the same day. It is a concocted tale, a forged allegation against my son”. 

 
Giving account of his isolated fight for justice, Yaseen revealed, “ I made an appeal to the Chief Minister about the unwarranted arrest of my son but so far all in vain. Police station 

Zakura kept dodging me by saying that it was not their matter as the arresting authority were from Delhi ”.  

A retired government employee, Yaseen pinned hopes to his son in educating whom he faced immense hardship. “ I am clueless. I fail to understand the reason why Rafiq has been targeted. What are the authorities up to? What do they want to prove”?  

Recently, a report published in an Indian National daily ‘Times of India’ (TOI) mentioning Rafiq’s non-involvement in the 29/10 blasts has given strength to Yaseen to fight for justice. “It was with the help of narco-analysis test, that belied the claims of Delhi police,” he asserts. “Shah doesn’t seem to be the Sarojni Nagar bomber. It seems at this stage that all the bombers have fled the country,” the newspaper wrote quoting Delhi Police Chief KK Paul. 

The paper further read, the special cell, however, had then insisted Rafiq was the bomber. As it is now turned out, the only reason was that Rafiq’s face resembled with that of the accused in the portrait prepared by the cops.  Of the three blasts, there was an eyewitness only in the Govindpuri case.

               Yaseen Shah says that he will continue his fight for justice till his last breath and would not let go Rafiq in the darkness of silence.

MINOR RAPED 

A minor 8th standard student Shaheena Jan daughter of Mohd Maqbool Wani resident of Balapora Tehshil Shopian was enticed by an intelligence Junior Commissioned Officer (JCO) namely Deepak Kumar Mahadeo Prased Trivadi of 31 CIU at 4 detachment of 44RR (Rashtriya Rifles) on the promise of getting her an attractive job in Srinagar and was subsequently taken to Jammu on 19-12-03. Being poor, she thought it better to get a job and therefore lied to her parents that she was going to Karela Wudur but accompanied the JCO in a Tata Sumo. Shocked at the news of their daughter having been picked up by Jammu police, Shaheena’s parents expressed complete ignorance about any plan on the part of their daughter to accompany the accused. Instead, they sought help from Shopian police in retrieving their daughter.

 
However instead of Srinagar, the accused took her to Jammu. While leaving his station, DKMP Trivadi came across Naik Ganesh Singh of 6 KUMAON and driver of ALS vehicle whom he told that he had taken permission from his officer to travel in his vehicle till Khannabal. After checking his identity card, the driver allowed Trivadi along with the girl to sit at the co-driver seat. At Khannabal, Trivadi along with the girl got down from the vehicle outside the Transit camp where all vehicles were lined up to enter into the camp with an excuse that he had to go to JCO’s mess. From there he boarded another vehicle and proceeded to Jammu. Though Trivadi was at duty at Chowgam, Balapor Shopian, he didn’t report at any transit camp. Reaching Jammu, taking advantage of Shaheena’s tired self, Trivadi went into Hotel Verma on 19-12-03.  

On being questioned by the hotel receptionist regarding the girl, Trivadi misled him by telling that the girl was his daughter. After having his dinner, Trivadi went into the girl’s room. When she was about to sleep, Trivadi bolted the room from inside and raped the girl. As the girl shouted and banged the door, Trivadi slapped the helpless girl and covered her mouth with his hand. For two days, Trivadi raped the girl and consistently threatened her of dire consequences if she dared to reveal it. After a few days, a police party came to the hotel. The police asked Trivadi about the girl who he replied was his friend’s daughter. The police arrested Trivadi and the girl who being the only witness in the act divulged all the details before the police. Trivadi was detained at Nowabad Jammu while the girl was lodged at women cell, Kanal Road Jammu. Thereafter, Trivadi was handed over to Army at 11 Dogra at Sunjwa Jammu and later on attached to 44RR. The girl was later examined by Dr Nusrat Jabeen Sub-district hospital Shopian. Medical evidence found that the girl was not habitual of sex and the act of December 19 and 20 were the first act of sex for her.  

The defense counsel challenged the testimony of Shaheena on the ground that she first lied to her parents, then to the police, the CJM and was now stating a falsehood before the court. During trail 19 witnesses were examined and the court after thoughtful deliberation came to the conclusion that the accused had right from the beginning maintained a relationship of dominance vis-à-vis Shaheena. Coupled with a promise of better life out side her village, Shaheena relented to the act of the accused against her will. Though there was no tangible evidence on record to show resistance on the part of Shaheena, the circumstantial evidence of involuntary submission of her is enough to support a view that the consent of Shaheena is out of compulsion and helplessness, hence is not valid consent for sexual act on 19 as well as 20th December 2003. The defense counsel challenged this testimony on the ground that since the accused was present throughout the day within the army camp at Balapur on 18th December 2003, he could not have gone and enticed Shaheena as alleged by her. The defense further contended that Shaheena eloped with a boyfriend of her whom she met co-incidentally at Jammu.

After a careful consideration of the evidence on record the court came to the conclusion that on the date of occurrence i.e. 19 December 2003, Shaheena was less then 18 years of age. On 23 July 2004, Trivadi was found guilty of all charges by SGCM and was awarded dismissal from service and 7 years imprisonment.

After sentence the accused has challenged the dismissal order and imprisonment before the High Court of J&K under writ petition number 593/04 dated 25-01-06 which is sub-judice.

HM MILITANT ARRESTED IN BANIHAL

POLICE CLAIMS BREAKTHROUGH IN BLASTS
Jammu, Nov 9: Achieving a substantial breakthrough in serial bomb blasts of New Delhi, security forces and intelligence agencies here claimed to have arrested an HM operative from Magarkote area of Nachlana in Banihal on November 9.

They said that the arrested HM operative who assisted LeT in serial blasts at Delhi was instrumental in planting a bomb carrying 15 Kgs RDX in Pahar Gunj area on Oct 19, 2005 evening. Police also claimed to have recovered cash from him supposedly given to him by the LeT ultras in New Delhi.

The arrested ultra has been identified as Ghulam Mohi-ud-din Lone 22, son of Abdul Hameed Lone, resident of Chapnari0 (Banihal).

Defense authorities said that at the time of his arrest, LeT cadres were believed likely to have been involved in serial blast at New Delhi, which left at least 63 persons dead.

Army Intelligence sources here said that Mohi-ud-din during his interrogation revealed that he was assigned to carry blasts in New Delhi by a HM commander Banihal Abdul Hamid Code Ashiq alias Sherkant (eliminated by security forces on the eve of Diwali). Hamid sent him to Sumber to meet Billoo Gujjar a dreaded HM commander of Doda district. Billoo Gujjar, intelligence sources said, introduced Mohiudin to Lashkar Commander Bahadur Jan of Lahore who operates from Batmaloo.

Intelligence sources further said that LeT Commander who came to upper reaches of Magarkote handed him letter and Rs 3000 cash on October 27, 2005 with the direction to immediately leave to Delhi. As per direction of LeT commander Bahadur Jan, Mohiudin left for Jammu on the same day in a Video Coach bus. Mohiudin boarded the Delhi bound Video Coach bus of Jamana Travels on October 28, 2005 evening from General Bus stand here and he reached Delhi next morning.

Army Intelligence sources quoting his statement during interrogation said that Mohiudin as per direction of LeT commander Bahadur Jan reached the office of Delhi-Awantipura Transport Company in Sanjay Gandhi Transport Nagar New Delhi at 1530 hours on October 29, 2005. There, he met three LeT operatives, one with French cut beard. All of them as per plan hired an autorikshaw and finally placed a bag carrying bomb under a abandoned table at Paharganj Naka Cghungi, Mohiudin was given Rs. 20000 by LeT cadres with the direction to stay away from Union capital and his native district for few days.

Mohiudin, intelligence sources said, left for Jodhpur and stayed there till October 31, 2005. He returned Delhi on November 1, 2005 from where he came to Ramban in a truck. He had good understanding with the truckers as he himself worked as driver of truck, which plyed between Delhi Anantnag.

Mohiudin Lone stayed in the house of a Special Police Officer (SPO) at Ramban on November 2 night and was later arrested by the troops of 12 RR from Magerkot. Troops recovered Rs 16000 from his possession. 

However, sources said that he was arrested on suspicion of his involvement in anti-national activities as he was missing from his house since May 2005.

Relatives of the arrested ultra, however, alleged that he had nothing to do with Delhi blasts and added that he was arrested on September 2005.

‘QAZIGUND POLICE SHIELDING MURDERERS OF 10-YEARS BOY’ SHRC ASKS DGP TO TRANSFER SHO

Srinagar, Nov 10:  The residents of Dooru Anantnag held demonstration at Press Colony on Nov 10 against the Station House Officer (SHO) Qazigund accusing him of hampering the investigation in a case involving murder of a 10-year old boy.

 
The resident alleged that the SHO Riyaz Manzoor, was protecting the murders of Azad Ali son of Ali Muhammad of Dooru, Sadoora who was killed after abduction on September 15.

Police registered a case of murder (FIR 177/05) after the residents staged demonstration on Srinagar-Jammu highway continuously for three days.

The residents of Dooru Sadoora and family of Azad on Nov 10 staged demonstrations and shouted slogans against the SHO. They were demanding SHO’s immediate transfer and arrest of the accused.

“He (SHO) knows who killed my son but still he hasn’t arrested them,” the father of the deceased told media.

“We weren’t even given the copy of the FIR or postmortem report of Azad and instead the SHO illegally detained his father for 22 days,” the protestors said.

They said the SHO has got vital clues including the name of the accused but he was “trying to hush up the matter.” The SHO however, refuted the allegation. “The investigation is still going on. We have to wait for the forensic reports before booking an accused. If the affected family doubts our integrity then they can shift the case to crime branch,” he told media

Meanwhile, taking cognizance of the complaint of murdered boy’s family, the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) on Nov 10 directed Director General of Police (DGP) to order the transfer of the SHO of Qazigund police station who is investigating the case.

“This commission has time and again tried to impress upon the government that it should stay honest and transparent. Police should not misuse power at the behest of some high-ups, howsoever-influential SHRC wrote in his letter to the DGP.

The commission also observed that police was harassing the victim’s relatives. “The net result sought to be achieved by the police was that real culprits shouldn’t be brought to book,” the letter adds.  Asking the DGP to entrust the case to an officer of repute, the commission directed that a report should be filed to it by November 30.

2 ARMY MAJORS, SOLDIER, KILL CIVILIAN IN CUSTODY 10 YEARS AGO

SHRC ASKS CM TO PUNISH THE ACCUSED; RECOMMENDS RS 3 LAKHS 

COMPENSATION, JOB TO BEREAVED FAMILY

Srinagar, Nov 11: Two   officers and a soldier of army’s 28 Rashtriya Rifle have been indicted by State Human Rights Commission for murdering a civilian in custody ten years ago and then branding him as an “unidentified militant who was killed during a gunfight.”

In one of the rare instances, police investigation proved twice that troops murdered a civilian in a fake gunfight and then branded him as militant.

Police has twice investigated the case and confirmed that Major Chinapa, Major Acharya, and soldier Muhammad Aslam of 28 RR killed Sonaullah Malik, son of Ghulam Qadir Malik of Zumzumpora, Zandfaran in Baramulla district in custody on May 13, 1995, the SHRC report said. A case of murder has been registered against the accused army officers and produced before the competent court, the SHRC said.

The SHRC termed the army’s version as “baseless and concocted.”

“This is only a tip of an iceberg. Custodial killings won’t be tolerated. We have been crying hoarse that the rate of custodial killings is not showing any decline,” the chairman told media.

“The commission expects the Chief Minister who has shown concern over custodial killings to order immediate action against the accused in this case. He must be aware of the fact that this be aware of the fact that this commission has been made redundant and we hope that CM would take stock of the ground situation,” he added.

The SHRC report notes that on May 12,1995, the accused officers and soldiers of 28 RR asked the village head and watchman to produce the murdered civilians, Sonaullah Malik, before them. The father, village head who happens to be 

Sonaullah’s father and the watchman accompanied Sonaullah Malik to the army camp and handed him over to the soldiers. Despite repeated requests by the entire village, the deceased civilian won’t release.

“Three days later, the dead body of the deceased was handed over to the police station concerned with the fictitious story that Sonaullah Malik was an unidentified militant who was killed in a gunfight with troops,” the SHRC said adding “the commission finds the story of the army to be baseless and concocted.”

“It is a clear case of custodial death and a case of murder ( 302 RPC) has been registered and produced before the competent court,” Justice AM Mir, chairman of SHRC said .

Justice Mir on November 11 said that the Commission received the case on August 15,2003 and entrusted it to Inspector General of Police, Kashmir. The IGP submitted his reply on February 26,2005.

The State Human Rights Commission has recommended government to pay Rs 3 lac to the father of the murdered civilian and to give job to one of his kin.

The reply states that Major Adjutant PS Lamba of 28 RR brought an unidentified dead body to police station Boniyar and filed a report that “ troops carried out counter insurgency operation in Nowshera and recovered an unidentified dead body. Troops also found one AK-56 Rifle, a magazine, 10 ammunition rounds a grenade from the slain terrorist.”

Meanwhile, a case of murder (FIR 42/95) was filed in Police Station Sheeri, Baramulla.

The IGP’s reply states that Inspector Muhammad Iiyas Baig was asked to investigate. He recorded the statements of respectable persons of the locality including the village head, the watchman, and father of the murdered civilian.

“His investigation revealed was a surrendered militants who used to work for the army. On May 12,1995, he was called by the army and the complainant (father of Malik), village head and watchman of the village accompanied him to the army camp and he was handed over to Major Chinapa, Major Achariya and CHM Muhammad Aslam of 28 RR. He was never released till May 15,1995. However, his dead body was handed over to the police station on 15 May 1995),” the IGP’s reply said.

The top police officers didn’t agree with the report submitted by the investigating officer, the SHRC said. The case was reopened and entrusted to a Deputy Superintendent of Police (DSP) of police Headquarters for reinvestigation.

The DSP conducted a fresh inquiry and recorded statements of number of people. His investigation report reads, “the investigation revealed that it is custodial killing committed by Major Chinapa, Major Acharya and Muhammad Aslam of 28 RR. On the basis of evidence, oral and ocular, the case (FIR42/95) in Sheeri police station has been closed as challaned against Major Chinpa, Major Acharya and CHM Muhammad Aslam for committing offence under section 302 (murder). Simultaneously, the FIR filed by 28 RR in Boniyar police station is closed as not admitted.

JKPCC ENGINEER MISSING, FAMILY SAYS IN CUSTODY

Handwara, Nov 22: An engineer of Jammu and Kashmir Project Construction Corporation (JKPCC) is missing after being allegedly arrested by the security forces.

Police says they are clueless about the whereabouts of Sheikh Abdur Rashid son of Sheikh Khazir of village Lachi, Mawar of Kupwara district, who went missing on Nov 21 afternoon.

The troops of 30 Rashtriya Rifles raided his house on Nov 21 evening and questioned his wife and aged parents, his family told media.

Rashid, a father of three daughters, works as a columnist for Urdu Weekly ‘Chattan’ under the pen names of SA Rashid.

Rashid, according to his family, on Nov 21 morning left for Srinagar to attend a meeting at JKPCC headquarters.

Villagers, alleging that the troops picked up Rashid, feared that he might be implicated in a false case because he has “raised his voice against the atrocities committed by the security forces”.

Police claimed Rashid was wanted in a recent firing incident in the area. “ Army has questioned the home people of Rashid on Nov21 evening. Recently a girl was fired upon by the militants and involvement of Rashid can’t be ruled out,” said the superintendent police, Handwara.

“I have contacted all the agencies in my jurisdiction and he is not with them,” the SP told the media on Tuesday.

On November 23, army refuted the allegations as baseless. According to a defense communiqué, the army carried out the search of the house of Rashid on November 22, 2005, based on information regarding his involvement with a militant group, but the troops did not arrest Rashid as alleged. When nothing was found from the house, the troops left,” the communiqué added

On November 24, Rahmi, 75, Rashid’s mother said he has been subjected to sever torture and police was forcing him to confess, “What he has not done.”

“Handwara police On November 23 night facilitated conversation between me and my son and throughout the conversation he was stammering,” she told media.

“ I was shocked when he told me to hand over Rs 60,000 “ given by militants’ to police. I replied that you have not given me even Rs 60 and you are talking about 60,000,” she said.

She said her son cried during the conversation and “it seems someone was coercing him to say all this.”

A police official in Handwara confirmed that they facilitated conversation between the mother-son duo on a cell phone. He however refused to divulge further details.

Meanwhile, the residents have threatened to launch protests if he was not released forth with.

They said the engineer had gone to Srinagar to attend a meeting of the JKPCC where he was allegedly picked up by the forces.

BEWS IN BRIEF

· TROOPS FIRE ON PROTESTORS, HURT 2

Srinagar, Nov1: Two persons were injured when BSF troopers fired on the protestors at Kachwari Rathsun Budgam on October 31.

According to media, 43 Bn BSF troops cordoned off the area and during search picked up some youths. When troops, according to media, started torturing youths, the people started protest demonstrations. The people according to media accused troops of severely cane-charging men and women injuring many of them. The people raising slogans against the troops who in retaliation detained Fayaz Ahmad Khan son of Sona-ul-llah and Bashir Ahmad Lone son of Ghulam Nabi.  As protestors resisted their arrest, troops fired wounding Nazir Ahmad Kalas son of Habibullah and Ghulam Ahmad Khan son of Abdul Aziz Khan of Rathsun Budgam. The injured were hospitalized while police has registered a case.

· I WILL CONTINUE TO FIGHT FOR JUSTICE”

Srinagar, Nov 1: On June 10, 2003, two persons took along Muktiar Ahmad son of late Nazir Ahmad, for some business transaction. Day after, Shairbagh police station informed his mother, Naseema about Mukhtair’s killing and asked her to take the body.

“I vividly remember that he was asked by Muhammad Sayeed Bhat of Mattan and Fayaz Ahmad Shah of Shopian to accompany them. And next day we were informed about his murder,” Naseema sighs.

Though the killing of her only son shocked Naseema, she didn’t relent and decided to fight back.

“Earlier police was reluctant to arrest the culprits, but I persisted and literally forced them to investigate the case,” the mother said. After investigation police arrested Fayaz Ahmad and produced Challan against him in the Court of Law. He was convicted and presently he is in Central jail. “But there were other people involved in the killing including Sayeed who was absconding. So I continued the fight for justice,” she added.

Last month, Naseema said police arrested Muhammad Sayeed Bhat. “ During interrogation he confessed that one Bilal Ahmad Khan alias Pina was the kinpin behind the murder of my son. But police released him after keeping him in custody for 15 days,” she said. “This will not go. My son was my world for me and now my only aim is to fight so that murderers of my son could be brought to book,” the frail but determined Naseema said.

· MAN SUCCUMBS TO POLICE TORTURE

Jammu, Nov 3: A man allegedly tortured by Special Operation Group (SOG) of police at Gandoh area of district Doda on Oct 20, succumbed to his injuries at the Government Medical College (GMC) hospital on November 3 evening. 

The deceased identified as Tej Ram, 32, son of Lal Chand, resident of Gandoh was severely beaten after being picked up by SOG men on Oct 20, 2005. In view of his severe condition, the victim was shifted to the GMC hospital Jammu on Oct 21, 2005.

However, despite medicare, his condition continued to deteriorate and he succumbed to his injuries on Nov 3 evening at 1615 hours. The body was shifted to the GMC mortuary and autopsy will be conducted. 

· REFUSING ARMY ‘DIKAKTS’ LEAVE YOUTH HALF DEAD

Handwara, Nov 7: The beating of a youth allegedly by the soldiers of Rashtriya Rifles (RR) triggered massive demonstration at Ganapora on Nov 7.

Eyewitnesses said that a Road Opening Party (ROP) of 30 RR stationed at Khoon camp stopped Feroz Ahmed Ganai, son of Ghulam Muhammad and asked him to remove his pheran (traditional Kashmiri robe).

“Feroz refused to remove the pherans in front of women folk on pretext of wearing a torn pajama,” the witnesses said. This, they added, irked the troops who severely thrashed Feroz leaving him “half dead.”

The incident sparked off massive demonstrations with hundreds of people from Ganapora, Langate and adjoining villages coming out of their houses. They blocked Handwara-Baramulla highway and kept injured Feroz on the road shouting slogans against the Army and the government.

“Just last week (Chief Minister) Ghulam Nabi Azad assured that human rights violations wouldn’t be allowed. Now the Army has nearly beaten a youth to death,” the agitated protesters shouted seeking action against the guilty.

They alleged that troops had unleashed a reign of terror in the area and made their lives miserable.”

Senior police officials tried to pacify the agitators, but in vain. Later the protestors dispersed when the DSP of Special Operation Group (SOG) visited the spot and ordered to register a case against the soldiers of 30 RR.

The DSP told media that FIR has been registered against the accused. “We have registered a case against Army in police Station Kralgund. Army has also assured investigation into the matter and guilty will be punished,” the DSP said, adding the youth had suffered injuries in head and had been shifted to Srinagar for further treatment.

· NO CUSTODIAL KILLINGS AZAD’S PROMISE

Jammu, Nov 7: Reiterating his stand on custodial killing, Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad assured on Nov7 that the State government would not compromise on custodial killing in the state.

“In the unified Command meeting, I have directed the concerned authorities to bring the graph of custodial killings up to zero level as the present government in no means can compromise on custodial deaths,” he stated.

· TROOPS HARASS MILITANT’S FAMILY

Bandipora, Nov 8: Troops of 57 RR laid a siege around the residence of Ghulam Ahmed Dar of Audmulla Bandipora on Nov 5 evening and erected a barbed wire around the house. According to the family members, the troops didn’t allow the inmates to move out of the house, belonging to the father of an active militant making them hostages in their own home. “The troops on Nov 6 morning barged into the residence and took away the father son duo to the camp wherein they were severely thrashed,” the family members told media correspondent. The father son duo was later released in a terrible condition, the family added. The troops according to the family also harassed them.

· INCREASING AIDS PATIENTS IN JK HAVE ROOTS IN TOURISM, TROOP DEPLOYMENT: AFXB
Jammu, Nov 14: The increasing number of AIDS patients in Kashmir has its roots in tourism and huge presence of Indian security forces, Countess Albina du Boisrouravy, the founder and president of Switzerland based renowned non-profit organization, Association Francios Bagnoud (AFXB) said during its visit to Jammu. “ Presence of Indian army in the Jammu and Kashmir is responsible for the increasing Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) graph in the state, “ said Countless Albina du Boisrouvray.

· CRPF PERSONNEL THRASH CNS EMPLOYEES

Srinagar, Nov 16: CRPF troopers allegedly detained and thrashed two employees of CNS inter Services near Palladium Cinema, Lal Chowk on Nov 16 afternoon.

“The troopers detained us for one hour and thrashed us. They snatched our purses containing identity cards and some cash when we were repairing Internet cables damaged in the firing incident on 15 Nov,” Zahoor Ahmad and Riyaz Ahmad Dar, employees of the CNS told media 

“They ordered us to leave the place after one hour failing which they threatened to kill us,” the duo added. PRO CRPF, RK Singh when contacted said,“ We would look into the incident and appropriate action would be taken.”

· SCRIBE MANHANDLED, THREATENED 

 Srinagar, Nov 15: Jammu and Kashmir Police allegedly manhandled Chief of one of the Kashmir’s News Agencies, Current News Service (CNS) Abdul Rashid Rahi. Rahi while covering the Lal Chowk encounter (Fidayeen attack) that started on November 14. 


Rahi alleged that a posse of policemen beat him up and even threatened him to kill in fake encounter as soon as he visited Lal Chowk to perform his professional duty. Thereafter, he was reportedly taken to Kothi Bagh police station few meters away from encounter site. 


Meanwhile, the Station House Officer (SHO) Maisuma Police Station allegedly also manhandled a photojournalist on duty and used abusive language. 


Expressing serious concern the journalist fraternity condemned the police action and demanded immediate probe into the incident. 

· YOUTH’S BEATING BY TROOPS SPARKS PROTESTS

Srinagar, Nov 19: The beating of a youth by troops triggered massive demonstration in South Kashmir’s Pulwama district on Nov 18.

Troops launched a cordon and search operation in Seel Tral and detained a youth, Muhammad Akbar Mir son of Ghulam Nabi, media reports said.

Troops severely thrashed the youth and later released him nearly dead, the reports added. Seeing Mir’s condition, hundreds of people took to streets and protested against the army. The protestors shouted slogans against the army blaming them of terrorizing people in the area.

“Muzaffar Ahmad Mir, the elder brother of the victim went missing after he was detained by the troops,” the protestors told the CNS. The protestors demanded action against the troops and investigation into the case.

· JAWAN SHOOTS HIMSELF DEAD

Jammu, Nov 17: An army jawan allegedly committed suicide by shooting himself with his own service weapon on Nov 17 mornings.

The deceased has been identified as Haveldar Pan Singh, resident of Almora Uttranchal.

He allegedly committed suicide inside the Engineer Regiment near general Bus stand, Rajouri at 0840 hours. Police is investigating the matter.

· 25 INJURED IN BSF ‘BEATING’ AT SOPORE

Bandipora, Nov 21:  At least 25 civilians were injured when paramilitary Border Security Forces (BSF) troops beat them up in North Kashmir’s Baramulla district on Nov 20 triggering massive protests on Nov 21.

Reports said an inspector of 112 battalion of BSF accompanied by 10 soldiers severely thrashed the shopkeepers with bamboo sticks and rifle butts on Nov 20 evening at Armpora Sopore, injuring 25 of them.

On 21 Nov morning people took to streets and amidst slogans protested against the incident. 

Later, the station House officers (SHO) of Sopore police station, Suhail Ahmad, reached the spot and the pacified the protestors assuring them of taking action against the erring troops.

“The Commanding officers of the BSF unit has assured me that he will shift the guilty officer and his men from the area,” the SHO Sopore told media on Nov 21.

· TORTURED BY RR YOUTH BATTLING FOR LIFE 

Srinagar, Nov 21: A youth reportedly arrested and tortured by the soldiers of Rashtriya Rifles suffered critical injury in South Kashmir’s Anantnag district, media reports said on Nov21.

According to media reports, soldiers of 26 RR arrested Bilal Ahmad Parray son of Bashir Ahmad of Golder Kokernag and Sajad Ahmad son of Muhammad Razzaq of Sagam during raids at their houses on 20 Nov.

The troops tortured Bilal for the whole night and when his condition deteriorated he was handed over to police station Kokernag.

Seeing Bilal’s condition the policeman rushed him to hospital in Anantnag distrct in critical condition. Hundreds of people staged demonstrations against the incident on Nov 21 and demanded action  against the soldiers.

· FENCING OF SPORTS GROUND EVOKES ANTI-ARMY PROTESTS IN CHATTABAL

Srinagar, Nov 20: People staged demonstration against the fencing of a sports ground by troops in Chanamohalla, Chattabal on Nov 21 morning.

According to the protestors, the troops of 122 battalion Territorial Army stationed in Tattu ground erected barbed wire around the ground and prevented the people from entering inside. “The sports ground is the only recreational space in the area,” Mohalla Committee president Haji Ghulam Muhammad told media.

Many sports clubs including the sports Council organized cricket and other tournaments in the ground measuring about 15 kanals during the past 15 years. According to the residents, the former Divisional Commissioner Pervaz Deewan in 2003 in a letter to the General Officer Commanding xv Corps urged him to advice the officers not to close the playground.” I would strongly urge you to advice the officers posted in the area not to close the said playground. There are few places in Kashmir where children can play on because land is so scarce in the valley,” Deewan in a letter to the army official had said. The inhabitants of the area threatened to launch a strong agitation if troops failed to remove the barbed wire.

· 3 FAKE MILITANTS NABBED IN KUPWARA

Drugmulla, Kupwara Nov 24: Police arrested three men who beat villagers of Bramir, Shatmugam and Drugmulla, extorting money from them by masquerading as militants. A toy pistol and three live grenades were recovered from them, police said.

Habibullah Dobi, a villager, said,” I was on way to home after offering prayers on Wednesday when they stopped me and took away Rs.500 from my pocket.”

“The trio caught hold of me on Tuesday and took me to a nearby field demanding money. When I resisted they beat me up and took away Rs 200 from my pocket,” adds another villager Sultan Dobi.

The trio forcibly entered homes seeking shelter after posing as militants. Talking to media, Senior Superintendent of police said, “Villagers informed me a week ago about the incidents. I directed SHO Kupwara who worked hard and caught the trio on Wednesday evening”. “They would be interrogated and may provide clue about similar cases,” he added.

· Troops ban river transport in Bijebehara

Srinagar, Nov 24: Troops deployed in riverside areas of Bijebehara township of Anantnag district have put ban on ferryboats in Jhelum river, a media report said adding people living around Sangam security base are facing severe hardships due to the ban. 

According to the report, the township is spread across the river and ferryboats are the only means of transport for common people especially workmen, school going children and patients. The report further said that following the ban on river transport, the inhabitants of the area have to travel an additional 10 Kilometers on foot to reach their respective destinations.

· ‘WHERE IS MY SON?’ 

Srinagar, Nov 25: Mahmooda has described the arrest of her son Muhammad Rafiq Shah by the State Task Force (STF) on Monday as unwarranted and uncalled for.

“They came to our house at 2am, beat us up and took my son away who was only in trousers and a shirt,” Mahmooda said. During the raid some people in civvies boarding a Santro with registration No. HR/3914 were accompanying STF, she added.

A PG student of Kashmir University, his whereabouts have not been disclosed so far. She said the family reported about his arrest to the police station on Tuesday morning.

On Tuesday, she said the STF again raided the house but this time the Station House Office of Zakura was accompanying them. “Is there any rule of law in the state? They have taken way my son and I am not allowed to meet him and I am not informed why he has been arrested,” the mother said.

Meanwhile, Kashmir University students have raised the issue with the vice-chancellor, Prof. Abdul Wahid and have demanded his immediate release.

· 3 POLICEMEN BOOKED UNDER PSA

Srinagar, Nov 27: Three police personnel in Kulgam were booked under Public Safety Act (PSA) and shifted to the Court Balwal Jail Jammu.

According to media, police personnel were posted at Barazaloo Kulgam Bridge when militants rounded them up and snatched their weapons on August 15.

The personnel, later suspended were head constable Abdul Rehman (Belt No.143PL, constable Riyaz Ahmad ( belt No.1480 KG) and constable Ashiq Hussein (Belt No.371 GK)

	Date 
	Extra judicial & Custodial Killings 
	Women killed 
	Children killed 
	Alleged Disappearances

	Nov 03
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Nov 12
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Nov 15
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Nov 16
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Nov 21
	
	
	
	2

	Nov 22
	1 EJK
	-
	
	-

	Nov 23
	1 CK 
	-
	
	-

	Nov 26
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Last week of Nov
	-
	-
	-
	4

	Total 
	2
	4
	2
	4



KILLINGS

	DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS



	Nov 01
	-
	6
	-
	1 VDC

	Nov 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 03
	-
	-
	10
	-

	Nov 04
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 05
	1
	-
	2
	-

	Nov 06
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 07
	-
	2
	4
	-

	Nov 08
	-
	7
	-
	-

	Nov 09
	-
	2
	4
	1PDP activist, I unknown corpse 

	Nov 10
	2
	-
	-
	1SPO

	Nov 11
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 12
	-
	1
	2
	1Congress Activist

	Nov 13
	-
	4
	3
	-

	Nov 14
	-
	3
	2
	-

	Nov 15
	2
	2
	3
	-

	Nov 16 
	-
	1
	4
	-

	Nov 17
	2
	-
	4
	-

	Nov 18
	-
	-
	2
	-

	Nov 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 20
	1
	3
	1
	-

	Nov 21
	-
	1
	-
	1 Unknown corpse recovered 

	Nov 22
	-
	1
	4
	-

	Nov 23
	-
	2
	1
	1 dead body 

	Nov 24
	3
	2
	-
	-

	Nov 25
	-
	1
	1
	-

	Nov 26
	-
	2
	2
	-

	Nov 27
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 28
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Nov 29
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 30
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Total 
	12
	45
	49
	7


CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS NOVEMBER 2005

	Nov 1
	6 militants including 1 HM militant and 1 VDC member were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 2
	No violent incident reported.



	Nov 3
	10 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Nov 4
	No violence incident reported. 



	Nov 5
	1 CRPF and 2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 6
	2 militants and 1 civilian were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 7
	4 civilians and 2 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 8
	 7 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 9
	1 PDP activist, 2 LeT militants and 4 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley. Police recovered 1 bullet-riddled body of SPO from Doda.



	Nov 10
	2 army and 1 SPO were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.

	Nov 11
	No violent incident occurred.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 



	Nov 12
	1 Cong activist, 1 militant and 2 civilian were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 13
	4 militants and 2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 14 
	2 civilians and 3 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 15
	2 CRPF, 3 civilians and 2 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 16
	4 civilians and 1 Fidayeen militant were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 17
	2 Army and 4 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 18
	2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 19
	No violence incident reported.



	Nov 20
	3 militants, 1 soldier and 1 civilian were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 21
	1 militant was killed in different violence related incidents in the valley. Police recovered 1 dead body from Baramulla



	Nov 22
	I JeM militant and 4 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 23
	2 militants, I civilian were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley. Police recovered 1 dead body from Pulwama.



	Nov 24
	3 Army and 2 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 25
	1JeM militant and 1 minor (3 yrs) were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 26
	2 released militant and 2 civilians were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 27
	No violence incident reported. 



	Nov 28
	3 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 29
	1 civilian was killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.



	Nov 30
	2 militants were killed in different violence related incidents in the valley.






Villagers accuse troops of using children and youth of their area as a tool to counter militants. “In fear of being exposed they concoct false stories or force us to fabricate anything which can bail them out from all allegations” villagers allege.








“Shah doesn’t seem to be the Govindpuri bomber. It seems at this stage that all the bombers have fled the country” Delhi Police Chief KK Paul.  





The appearance of Mohammad Rafiq resembles with a sketch that had been drawn after the blast. 








The officer was tried by SGCM convened by General Officer Commanding for offences under section 69 of the Army act for committing rape under section 376 of RPC and 363 RPC for kidnapping the minor girl from the lawful guardian of her parents and also under section 39 (a) Army act for absenting himself without leave.





WOMEN - CHILDREN KILLED





November 3: In a car bomb blast at Nowgam in the outskirts on the Srinagar - Jammu national highway two women were killed.  One of the deceased was identified as Saleema Akhter, wife of Dr. Ghulam Rasool resident of Gulshan Nagar, however, the identity of another woman could not be ascertained as the body was defaced beyond recognition due to the impact of the blast.





November 12: An elderly woman died on the spot while her two grand sons were wounded in a blast went off at their residence in Khour area of Akhnoor. Their house collapsed due to the explosion and the victims were buried under the rubble. The explosion took place at 0410 hours this morning. The deceased has been identified as Parmo Devi wife of Babu Ram, resident of Khour. Her grandsons were identified as Sikander Singh 14, alias Rinku and Sikander Singh 8 both sons of Jagtar Singh residents of Khour.





November 15: Unidentified gunmen shot at Haseena Akhter, 22, daughter of Ali Muhammad of Gulbagh (Ratnipora) Pulwama on Sunday evening. Haseena succumbed to her injuries in hospital, police said, she was working as SPO in police station Pampore two years back.





November 16: In the Tangmarg blast explosion that occurred after the former housing and urban development minister and senior Peoples Democratic Party (PDP) leader finished his speech at a rally at Tangmarg Park a 12-year-old student Showkat Ahmad War son of Muhammad Yousuf War of Patipora was killed among six others.





November 26: A girl who was injured in the grenade blast in the house of Abdul Hamid at Surankote in Poonch on 24th November succumbed to her injuries.
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